MINUTES
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
Wednesday, August 11, 2010, 7:00 PM

MEMBERS: Chair Al Hartkopf, Carla Lunsford Eddie Sain, Dowgjevenson, and Bill

ABSENT:

STAFF:

PUBLIC:

ITEM #1:

ITEM #2:

ITEM #3:

MOTION:

VOTE:

MOTION:

VOTE:

ITEM #4:

Whitmore.
Tommy Sikes and Rod Jones, absences excused.

Senior Planner Tom King, Planning Director Marg&tauth, and Town Attorney
Bob Hornik.

John Roberts, Susan Mellott, Judge Joseph Bucldemrge Horton, Joe Phelps,
and Frank Clifton.

Call meeting to order and confirm the presnce of a quorum.
Chair Al Hartkopf called the meeting to order ad(:p.m. and confirmed the
presence of a quorum.

Consideration of additions or changes tolie agenda.

Mr. King indicated one item to be included aftee t€losed Session. Mr.
Hartkopt suggested that be added as item #5b. eTWere no other additions or
changes to the agenda.

Approve the June 9, 2010 regular meeting mmutes and closed session
minutes.

Mr. Sain moved to adopt the minutes of the June 9, 2010ingeas submitted.
Ms. Lunsford seconded.
Unanimous.

Ms. Lunsford moved to adopt the minutes of the Closed Sessidlumé 9, 2010
meeting as submittedVir. Whitmore seconded.
Unanimous.

Case #BA-08-2010 — Appeal from an actionfahe Zoning Officer submitted
by Orange County. The appeal relates to a Notice afoning Violation issued
May 26, 2010 regarding illegal re-occupancy of theewly renovated Orange
County Justice Facility. The property subject to tke appeal is located at 106
East Margaret Lane (Orange County Tax Map Reference?4.36.D.1) and is
zoned Ol (Office Institutional)/HD (Historic Distri ct) Overlay.

Mr. King swore in Tom King, Margaret Hauth, SusaelMtt and John Roberts.
Mr. Hartkopf noted that officers of the Court didtmeed to be sworn.



Senior Planner Tom King provided a brief staff niepand case history of the
iIssue, noting that this was an appeal to a Noticgaing Violation regarding the

illegal re-occupancy of the newly renovated Ora@geinty Justice Facility. He

said in November of 2006 the BOA (Board of Adjustiieapproved a site plan

for the Justice Facility expansion which createel tieed for additional off-street
parking. Mr. King said one of the conditions ofpapval offered by the County,

and based on representations made by the CountigetOA, resulted in a

condition being attached to the approval that tber@y would submit a specific

parking plan detailing off-site parking arrangenseand policies to be enacted to
meet the off-street parking requirements of Sediaf the Zoning Ordinance.

Mr. King said at the public hearing when the casesvineard, the BOA had
accepted as a condition of site plan approval effeby the County a County
policy to encourage or if necessary require Coentyloyees to park off-site and
be shuttled to the Courthouse site as meetingeitpeinrements of Article 6.6 of the
Zoning Ordinance and that the BOA would review tietails of that plan and
policy at a later date.

Mr. King said in January and February of 2010 Cywstaff began to prepare for
completion of the project and the request of a Cértjficate of Occupancy) for
the building. He said one of the requirementsidetnance of the CO was for the
Town to sign off on a Zoning Compliance Permit gading that the project
complied with all zoning requirements. At that éimMr. King said, the County
was reminded of the parking plan and other addafiagtems related to Historic
District Commission approval including landscapingle said in response, the
County had put forth several alternative parkingngl beginning at a meeting in
March 2010 and continuing to two meetings in Ap&iith a final meeting in May
2010. Mr. King said on May 12, 2010 the BOA ultielg refused to accept any
of the County’s alternative parking plans.

Mr. King said on May 14, 2010 Chief District Codutdge Joseph Buckner issued
an Administrative Order to allow the courts to gegwa portion of the Justice
Facility building, and that was included as Atta@minl, Exhibit B in the Board’s
packet. He said in response, on May 26, 2010 thenTPlanning Director and
Zoning Officer Margaret Hauth issued a Notice obldtion addressed to the
County Manager. The Notice was identified as Attaeht 2 in the packet. Mr.
King said that Notice of Violation alleged that tlemovated courthouse was being
occupied without a valid CO and in violation of tbenditionally approved Site
Plan that was approved in November of 2006. He #wit letter also advised the
County Manager that the Town would be assessingilapenalty in the amount
of $100 a day unless the County either compliedh whte Conditional Site Plan
approval or with the parking requirements requicedhe Justice Center.

Mr. King said the County was also informed thateotlenforcement avenues
might be pursued if the violation was not remedigag they were also advised
that they could appeal to the BOA, which was whas Wwefore the Board tonight.

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



MOTION:

VOTE:

Mr. Hartkopf asked the Town Attorney who he wasrespnting at tonight's
meeting. Town Attorney Bob Hornik replied he wapresenting the Board of
Adjustment as its attorney. Mr. Hartkopf askedevirere any factors impacting
his representation of the BOA. Mr. Hornik replieel knew of none.

Mr. Hartkopf asked if Orange County had any obmwi to Mr. Hornik
representing the BOA. John Roberts, the CountyrAgly and representing
Orange County, replied they had no objection.

Mr. Sain moved to open the Public Hearinllr. Stevensonseconded.
Unanimous.

Mr. Hartkopf said the Board had received a new dumt this evening, and asked
the appellant if any of the information submittedsvmaterially different than
what was in the agenda packet. Mr. Roberts resggbtitere was a memorandum
of law in support of what was included in the amagi packet, which included
three exhibits that should be included in the récoHe said the material also
included several case law citings.

Mr. Roberts noted that Exhibits 1 and 2 were exilihat were a part of the
appeal packet and not new information. He saidMbenorandum of Law was 3
pages, and Exhibit 3 was new information.

Mr. Roberts said that Exhibit 3 was an affidavittioé County Manager that was
for the BOA’'s benefit to show that a certain Coungynployee made
representations to the BOA that were unauthorizezhning that she did not have
the authority to make those representations.

Mr. Roberts said he did not substantially diffethwidr. King's presentation of the

facts. He said the only thing he would add tordreition of those facts was that
there was a Conditional Certificate of Occupancplace, which was not intended
to be permanent and not presented as permanentRderts said a permanent
CO required Hillsborough'’s sign-off as a mattemoficy between the Town and

the County. He said the Conditional CO was entitelder the discretion of the

County Inspections Department.

Mr. Roberts said in addition to the Conditional @@t was in place, there was an
Administrative Order allowing occupancy of the Qbiouse Justice Facility, and
he believed that Orange County’s Conditional CO w@aspletely in agreement
with that order.

Mr. Roberts asked Judge Joseph Buckner to comeafdrfor questions. Mr.

Roberts asked Judge Buckner to provide a basicgbagkd of his duties as
District Court Judge, which he provided. Judge e said those duties were
stated in N.C.G.S. 7A-146, which included the duatyschedule all district court
including magistrate or small claims court througthtine district.

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



Mr. Roberts asked as a part of those duties, digdee an Administrative Order
for occupancy of the Orange County Justice Facbiylding. Judge Buckner
stated he did. Mr. Roberts asked if that was Ekl&b Judge Buckner said if
Exhibit 2 was the Administrative Order with his s&gure, then that was correct.
Mr. Roberts asked Judge Buckner to describe what iwathe Administrative
Order and to state for the record what his authevds to have entered that order.
Judge Buckner said he had pulled the State Cofistifthe had pulled the Duties
and Responsibilities of the Chief District Courtida under the General Statutes,
he had pulled the affirmative duties from the Cofldudicial Conduct, and he had
pulled a textbook used during his days at the Matidudicial College on the
inherent powers of the courts. He said in summd#rg, inherent powers were
powers that were not articulated by statute bueweplied in a position that an
official held.

Judge Buckner said the open court section in thestitation required that the
courts remain open and that they be administerdidowt favor, denial, or delay.
He said the Separation of Powers section artiadil@tethe order determined
between the three branches of government, andisnirtetance, it was his view
and belief that was the legislative and judiciarwhes. Judge Buckner said in
addition, there were affirmative duties that wenticalated in the Code of Judicial
Conduct which included but were not limited to taet that a Judge should
maintain order and decorum in proceedings befaredriher, that a Judge should
accord every person who was legally interestetienproceedings or that person’s
attorney full right to be heard according to lawdahat a Judge should dispose
promptly of the business of the court.

Judge Buckner said also included in his thoughtgse but not articulated in the
Order, because he did not believe it was needesl Gv@. 7A-302 which required
the counties or supporting municipalities to previghysical facilities to the

courts. He said in G.S. 7A-130, it said specific#that the district court shall sit

in the county seat of each county, and such additiplaces as the General
Assembly may authorize. Judge Bucker said th@gatss fell into his decision to
issue the Administrative Order.

Judge Bucker said one other rule of court, whick pr@mulgated by the Supreme
Court and was the rules of general practice foreBap and District Court which
was how they moved their cases, was that the oflpgactice shall at all times be
construed and enforced in such a manner to avolthieal delay and permit just
and prompt consideration and determination ofsalliés before the court. He said
the last section in the Administrative Order waseport from Judge Vernon of
their initial attempts to make do with the facéds| and it expressed safety
concerns about what had occurred when they hathpittel to hold court in the
old courthouse. Judge Buckner said that, combividdthe open discussion held
about him not having any real knowledge of the ulisghetween the County and
the Town before, he would have had to make sigmtichanges in the location of
where literally thousands of cases and people geirey to be told to go.

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



Judge Buckner said when Judge Vernon and othet officials as well as his
assistant had enumerated their alarm about s&fietynerated their concern about
accessibility, and discussed the issue specifithly Judge Vernon had had to ask
every person who was not a party defendant inraiical session of court to leave
the courtroom because they were far in excess ef ddpacity of the old
courtroom, he had felt compelled under his dutyat@ steps to meet his duty as
Chief District Court Judge. He said he had calletf Thompson and Pam Jones
as County officials and voiced his concern, sayheg he wanted to know what
the health and safety status permits were via tapaBment of Insurance, or
anything that would prohibit people from occupyitigat space in a safe and
lawful manner. Judge Buckner said it was his behat had he been told the
rooms themselves had not been signed off on byppeopriate health and safety
officials, and that that would not have been appade or lawful on his part.

Judge Buckner said he was told by those two Cooffigials and then confirmed
with Mr. Roberts as County Attorney that all themis with the exception of the
CO between Hillsborough and Orange County, whialicemed the allocation of
parking which he knew nothing about, had been vecei He said at that point he
felt compelled to order that the courtrooms be epenand entered the
Administrative Order as a result of observing higydunder the various legal
instruments as well as his inherent responsikidititeep the public safe and make
sure their cases were heard in a timely manner.

Judge Buckner said he wanted to assure them pdissand professionally that it

was not an affront directed at this Board whichraspected or the Town of
Hillsborough.  With that being said, Judge Buckrsaid he did view his

responsibility as a separate duty that he had tt mred did not have the ability to
relieve his duty or relieve himself of his duty emndhose circumstances.

Mr. Roberts said Judge Buckner had said he haduttedsJeff Thompson and
Pam Jones as well as him about permits, and a$kesl had consulted him or
anyone in his office about his authority to entex Order and whether he had that
authority. Judge Buckner responded no, that he dwasulted with the Chief
Justice’s office and the Senior Resident SupermurCJudge just to make sure he
had not exceeded his authority.

Mr. Roberts asked if he knew or had an opinion albdiether Orange County had
the power or authority to countermand his Orderemnove the courts from that
building. Judge Buckner responded he knew of mall@authority that would
allow the County to remove the operations of th@rcanless the buildings
became unsafe or uninhabitable. He said he didcadedge the responsibility
that the County had to provide the courts adeqizaiéties. Mr. Roberts said if
he had discovered in talking with Mr. Thompson . Mones that the health and
safety permits had not been issued, would he haterexl the Order. Judge
Buckner said he would not have done that.

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



Ms. Lunsford said to clarify, that he was referrtiogthe health and safety of the
courtroom and the building itself. Mr. Robertsdsgiist as it applied to the
expanded portion of the Justice Facility.

Judge Buckner stated it was his understandingtiieapermit for the new section
had actually been entered for the Clerk's Offides Sheriff's Department, and
Courtrooms 3 and 4, but he stood to be correcteMibyRoberts. Mr. Roberts
said he had no representation to make regarding tha

Mr. Whitmore asked had he felt an obligation a®#icial of the court to expand
that adequate facility explanation to the geneagty of the public as it pertained
to parking. Judge Buckner said if he was made ewérany health and safety
issue as a result of the parking or lack thereofefoergency access. He said he
had contacted Hillsborough’s Acting Police ChiefvidaTrimmer and asked him
to notify him directly if there were ever any conte about court programming
affecting that, as well as Major Blackwood and ShdPendergrass. Judge
Buckner said as he understood it from Acting Chiemmer, Major Blackwood,
and Sheriff Pendergrass of the County were poli¢hgy interior lots, and the
Hillsborough Police Department were policing theests around the facility in
terms of any kind of parking issues. Judge Bucksad that Acting Chief
Trimmer had assured him that if issues arose hddaletthim know, but he had
not heard from Acting Chief Trimmer to that effecHe said he had instructed
Major Blackwood, who was head of Court Operatiorsvises, to do everything
he could to keep the activities around the coudhkosafe, including but not
limited to parking and emergency access. He daatl Major Blackwood was
within his control and was responsible for doingavthe court needed him to do
for all of those issues. He said to his knowledye,had not been told of any
expanded safety concerns to date. But, Judge Ruckad, if he were made
aware of any issues he would take the operatidepssecessary to change the
scheduling pattern so if it was a numeric issughemumber of people coming in,
that they did not have that problem or at leasticed it significantly.

Mr. Stevenson said to clarify, he had indicated tieahad taken advice from both
County officials and fellow judges on the condisoof the court operations prior
to the Administrative Order, and that based on teasultation and advice he had
felt they had reached a point where they were patlacting safe operations in
the old courthouse. Judge Buckner said to clahiéydid not believe he had asked
County officials for any advice; he had asked Mnompson and Ms. Jones if all
the health and safety permits that would permitube of the courtrooms in that
building were in place, and the response was ykslge Buckner said he had
asked what remained, and the response was the pemin@O which involved a

dispute regarding the parking plan between the Tamahthe County. He said he
had then called Mr. Roberts because he had waotethke sure that that was in
fact the case before he issued the Order. Heit&id had been told that the
interior of the buildings were not safe to occupg, would not have entered the
Order. Judge Buckner said the consultation hedvaght with Judge Fox, the

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



Senior Resident Superior Court Judge who had saimenastrative scheduling
authority that was parallel to his, and the Chigdtite’s Office was that he was
contemplating that action and was there a probleey knew of. He said the
instruction he had received was to do his duty.

Mr. Stevenson asked did the court feel opening ftioam was absolutely

necessary for court functions. Judge Buckner saidis role as Chief District

Court Judge and on behalf of the other four Dist@iourt judges, the concern he
had had was that he could not explain to someore milght be hurt or injured

using those slippery stairs, or might not be ablenéar their child’'s case or
support some other witness, why he had not takBanacHe said the answer to
the question was yes, he thought it was absolutebessary both for safety and
for the administration of justice. Judge Bucknaidshe believed he would have
been in a very tenuous situation to meet his dotgay why he had not taken
action that would have prevented some tragedyedéay in hearing cases.

Mr. Hornik said, to be clear for the record, thautosystem did not own the
building. Judge Buckner replied they did not; tegre tenants. Mr. Hornik said
tenants of Orange County. Judge Buckner replied pat statutory tenants of
Orange County.

Mr. Hornik asked had he checked to make sure tsatddnes and Mr. Thompson
had authority to make the representations that tiey made to him. Judge
Buckner said during his term as Chief District Golwdge, Ms. Jones was the
designated person for all court facilities and camioation. He said for instance,
the County was required to provide the court pecaty with furniture that
needed to be replaced. Judge Buckner said thantleMs. Jones had had a
professional relationship in that regard for thst |24 years, and Ms. Jones had
told him that Mr. Thompson was the specific peratio was working through the
new construction issues. He said he had confirtied substance with the
County’s attorney, but had not gone any furthethgpline than that.

Mr. Hornik asked had he ever had any experienceabkah 14 years of working
with Ms. Jones to learn after the fact that she ribtl have authority to make
representations to him. Judge Buckner replied metr. Hornik said the Town
had now been told that Ms. Jones did not have th#hodty to make
representations to the Town, so he had wanted te@ rsare that they were clear
about whether she had authority or did not. JWigekner said to be clear he had
not asked Ms. Jones’ permission to enter the cousi

Mr. Hornik asked would he agree that the Town’sidgrOrdinance had the force
of law in Town. Judge Bucker replied “absolutelyWir. Hornik said in Section

1.4 of the Zoning Ordinance, it said that “no landstructures or any part thereof
shall be constructed, erected, altered, renovatethoved, except in compliance
with the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance. Hkemshad he been aware of that

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



section of the Zoning Ordinance when he had madedécision to occupy the
building. Judge Buckner replied no.

Mr. Hornik asked was he aware of Section 19.6 efZloning Ordinance which
said that “no building or structure shall be usedoocupied until the Building
Inspector has after final inspection issued a @eate of Occupancy.” Judge
Buckner replied no. Mr. Hornik asked was he novaigithat the Conditional CO
that Orange County now relied on was not issue aindbut a month after he had
issued his Order. Judge Buckner said if Mr. Hormikl Mr. Roberts agreed that
was the case, then he trusted their word on that.Hornik said that was one of
the exhibits that the County had submitted for theord that showed that the
Conditional CO was signed by Susan Mellott on JU&e2010, and the court had
occupied the rooms on May 17, 2010. Judge Buckaierhe may have seen that
in an email.

Mr. Hornik said that Judge Buckner had indicatedt tthere was a particular
section of the law that required that court wabéaconducted in the County seat.
Judge Buckner said that was correct, noting it @&. 7A-130. Mr. Hornik said
for the record the County seat was Hillsborough.

Mr. Hornik said he wanted to explore the scopéhefdourt’s authority to enter an
order such as this Administrative Order directilhgttthe court be held at a
particular location. He said if there was, for myde, space at Dickerson’s Chapel
Church around the corner, did he have the authtwisay he would conduct court
there. Judge Buckner said the statute said treatCibunty must provide him
adequate facilities, and there were also variowwvigions that said an officer,
which was deemed to be the director or his desighad to also say that the
facilities were adequate. Judge Buckner said tben§/ had an un-releasable
responsibility, and the parallel example would battif Chapel Hill wanted to
stop having district court there were probably sdmeeps that they could go
through to achieve that. He said as he understbodas the County’'s
responsibility, unless the statute was changenhetet that.

Mr. Hornik said he was trying to determine the scaj the court’s authority,
because they were occupying that building undeAdisinistrative Order, and if
the obligation of the County was to provide thertouth adequate space then he
could have essentially looked at any County bugdimthe Town of Hillsborough
and then said that he wanted to conduct court theiedge Buckner said that
called for a hypothetical; he did not do that aedatould not do that. Mr. Hornik
said there were many County buildings in Hillsbgiouhat had CO’s and were
being occupied. Judge Buckner said they would Heaceto prove adequate for
court functions. He said the number of weaponsttiey seized and the number
of people they dealt with that were in very highiplent conflicts required a
special space. Judge Buckner said with the volumeslated to crimes of
violence or threats or intimidation and tainting flary pool and all the technical
issues, he was aware of no building that would nfeede immediate needs and

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



then the more long term needs such as where thgesudffices might be and
where the D.A.’s offices might be, and other Courtgponsibilities. Mr. Hornik

said then at the time, in May of 2010, there wasotieer facility that satisfied

those needs. Judge Buckner responded not to bisl&dge, but said even if that
had been offered and knowing what he knew about hbalth and safety

occupancy of the courthouse that had been built degigned to meet those
unique needs, he would have still ordered the ooomt to be used.

Mr. Hornik said he had done that as opposed to ngogourt back to Chapel Hill
where it had been for two years prior to May of @0Dudge Buckner said he had
represented to the BOA previously that he couldabdy do that but it would take
at least six months due to the number people aedcags that would have to be
notified, and he had the immediate issue of halitegally hundred to thousands
of people who they had no time to redirect.

Ms. Lunsford said in providing adequate faciliteasd providing for safety in the
courtroom, and in thinking about all of those peogdlying to park in
Hillsborough, it was hard to imagine that parkingsanot a key concern to make
sure a facility was adequate. Judge Buckner salsolutely was a concern, and
he professed no expertise about zoning regulasondo not expect him to have
even a layperson’s opinion about that.

Ms. Lunsford said she could see chaos. Judge Bucsad operationally, the
numbers that the Clerk of Superior Court had repeesl at the last hearing from
cases from 2006 and 2007 when they had moveddd tyierations to Chapel Hill
did not grow and were not statistically significat80, he said, as they were doing
all of those types of cases in 2006 and 2007 twe oeurtrooms were added.
Judge Buckner said a good example was a murdémtr&uperior Court that had
lasted over the last two weeks and at the samettisre was a civil case going
on. He said he had only one courtroom he couleémn being available, but
now they had three courtrooms plus the hearing ragailable. Judge Buckner
said so the way he programmed criminal court,itraturt, special DWI sessions,
child support court, DSS abuse and neglect of gnldourt, juvenile delinquency
court, family violence court, general civil casead general family court was far
different. He said the goal was to provide acdesthe court for all of those
different civil, social services, and criminal ceasand through programming they
had tried to lessen the numbers of people on arjcplar day. Judge Buckner
said the second strategy was that because theg nmuimultiple judges in two or
more courtrooms on heavy days, that the caseswbed heard on those days
would clear the site more quickly.

Ms. Lunsford said then there was a strategic plardge Buckner replied yes, that
they had been planning for that for years. He baidvanted to reiterate that he
had not known about the parking issue between thenty and the Town, and it

was very difficult to get the word out to all theaessary various law enforcement

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



10

agencies about where to cite a person to appehouwtiadequate lead time. Judge
Buckner said that was what he had been confroniid w

Mr. Hornik asked had Judge Buckner received anicadtom the Town that they
were trying to evict him from the courthouse. Jed8uckner responded no,
although he had received a communication from MautH that the civil penalty

would be assessed. Mr. Hornik said that was thacBl®f Violation. Judge

Buckner said he believed that was correct. Mr.ntkosaid he would represent to
him that unless something had happened today hadtagceived any notice that
the Town was trying to evict him from the courtheusJudge Buckner said he
accepted that representation. Mr. Hornik askedldvbe agree that compliance
with the law was important. Judge Buckner rephédolutely, that he had taken
an oath to uphold the law and to meet his duty.

Mr. Hartkopf said the Board appreciated the adrriaiive and operational ethics
that Judge Buckner had put forward to serve thelpeaf Orange County and the
district. He said when he had received the Adrraive Order, the second
paragraph said that the legislative executivessaipdeme judicial powers of State
government shall be forever separate and distioot feach other. Mr. Hartkopf
said he believed that was really the crux of thide said not only were there
legislative issues on the table but there werecjabioperations that had to be
pursued. Judge Buckner said he did not think tispute between the two
legislative bodies negated his duty and the separaf powers issue was not a
power play, and he wanted to assure the Boardrenddwn of that. He said this
Board had done its duty very diligently by his alvs¢ion as a novice in zoning
and land use issues, and he believed that the Boarthe County had legitimate
issues of concern and hoped that would be workéd dudge Buckner said at the
end of the day, his duty was affirmed for him aedrino way meant to intrude in
his official capacity on the legislative responkiigis and authorities.

Mr. Hartkopf said it was in that vein that he haadd that passage to him, noting
he, too, did not see it as a power play but aaméwork for the government. He
said as he had read through the Administrative Ovdeat he had read was a
gentleman taking his duty to the citizens seriowasiy respected due process and
their rights. Mr. Hartkopf said the other fulcruof this was the County
requirement versus the court responsibility. He fzere was a requirement that
court be held in the county seat, that Judge Buckiae the responsibility to
uphold due process, and the County had the redplitysof hosting court which
was clear and understood by this Board. Mr. Haftkeaid the Board also
understood that Judge Buckner had the added rabpitynso keep things as safe
as possible in the parking and in the facilitiete said having been a recent visitor
to the court it appeared to be working rather well.

Mr. Hartkopf said there had been a statement maalethe County did not have
the authority to remove him, and naturally the Tatieh not have that right. He
asked Mr. Roberts if that was implicit in anythiwgtten or that he had said that

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



11

if they could they would make the court leave se plarking problem would be
resolved. Mr. Roberts said he did not believe thas implicit, and did not
believe the County had the authority or the williiegs to try to expel Judge
Buckner from the courtroom. Mr. Hartkopf askedhé& County had that desire.
Mr. Roberts said he could not speak for the Coumthat regards, but personally
he certainly had no desire to do that. He saidittenot know if the Town had the
standing to do that, but he and Judge Buckner &ladd about whether there was
a method to challenge that. Mr. Roberts said Jiigkner did not believe there
was except possibly through the Chief Justice. séld he respectfully disagreed
with that, noting that any judicial order might tleallenged by some special writ,
but he did not see the County filing any speciat tordo that.

Mr. Hornik said for the record that the Town was oconvinced that they did not
have an ability to do something about it, but thag chosen not to because they
did not want to enter into a constitutional battiéh the court. He said they were
trying to solve the problem somehow.

Mr. Hartkopf agreed, noting he was just not sur& kmdo that.

Mr. Hornik said he did not want to give the impiiessthat the Town conceded
that there was nothing that could be done aboutdlet's order. He said rather
the Town had chosen not to do anything about it.

Mr. Roberts said he believed Mr. Hornik would agteat he had not been
involved in this case before April, in that no dmed bothered to talk with him or
ask his advice about what they should do beforg iael come to the Town. He
said he was not here in 2006, but in his initiah\earsation with Mr. Hornik and

several since then it had involved the stateméfhat can the County do to settle
this problem and make the Town and the Board oligtdpent happy” other than
sending people to park at Durham Tech. Mr. Robsasig he had asked Mr.
Hornik what could they do, and if possible they Vdodo it. He said he was not
the County Manager and could not make certain sgptations, but if it involved

building more parking then the County could findiay to do that.

Mr. Roberts said they wanted to settle the issdding that no one wanted this to
play out in the courts. He said he never wantadl &imd he had asked from day
one how to settle it.

Mr. Roberts introduced Susan Mellott, noting sheswhe County’s Chief
Building Official and the Town of Hillsborough’s bding inspector. Mr. Roberts
asked how long she had occupied that position. N#dlott replied since 2000.
She said prior to that she had worked within théldBwy Inspections Division
beginning in 1994, and prior to that she was in Eresion Control Division
beginning in 1982. Mr. Roberts asked was it fairsty she had quite a bit of
experience in inspections. Ms. Mellott replied stk

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



12

Mr. Roberts asked Ms. Mellott to describe her duti®&ls. Mellott said it was her

responsibility to see that the office of Buildingspections was conducted
appropriately, that they enforced the State bugdiodes and the Administrative
Code that contained references to the Generalt8¢attuat were applicable to their
work in issuing permits, conducting inspectionsd assuing Certificates of

Completion, of which most of them called Certifesibf Occupancy.

Mr. Roberts asked was she familiar with the undeglgituation of why they were
here tonight. Ms. Mellott replied she was. Mr.beds asked had she had the
chance to review what was marked as Appellant’'siiiixh. Ms. Mellott replied
yes, noting that was the CCO (Conditional CerttBcaf Occupancy). Mr.
Roberts asked had she personally issued that C®M3. Mellott replied not
personally, noting she was not in the office thay #ut she had authorized the
issuance of that CCO via email. She said theicgss was an electronic process
and you could see that the signature was an etectsggnature. Ms. Mellott said
there were a series of steps that had to be satisfore the CO would be issued
so that they did not make mistakes, and those psesehad to be approved before
the CO could be generated.

Mr. Roberts said before the CCO was issued, didssh®meone in her office
verify that all permits had been issued with theepmtion of the Hillsborough
Zoning Compliance Permit. Ms. Mellott replied yebIr. Roberts asked if that
included all health, life, and safety and relateztnts for the inside of the
building. Ms. Mellott said that was correct, ngtithe permits were issued at the
beginning and they looked at whether the final at$ions had been completed
and that all conditions had been satisfied befage@GO could be issued.

Mr. Roberts asked had all of those inspections lweenpleted and successfully
passed on the Justice Center. Ms. Mellott replies, except for the Zoning
Compliance Permit from Hillsborough. Mr. Robertsked if that Zoning
Compliance Permit applied only to the parking algsof the Justice Facility. Ms.
Mellott said she had a list from Senior Planner Tkimg that was generated June
17, 2010 and there were several items of which ipgrkvas a part. She
paraphrased the items listed by Mr. King as:
» that the site plan had to have presentation of ab&e remote parking
facilities or the correct number of parking
» that they needed an as-built landscape plan
» that the north side of the parking area adjacefiast Margaret Lane had
to meet screening requirements
« that the gravel driveway and parking area off SdCitlurton Street had to
be removed
» that there were some cosmetic things to be dotleet@luminum security
fence door to meet the Hillsborough appearance atieen
e handrails leading into River Park must be replageth picket style
handrails.

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



13

Mr. Roberts said then there was noting related dalth, life or safety. Ms.
Mellott responded no. Mr. Roberts asked was ibamoon to issue CCO’s. Ms.
Mellott replied no, stating that was allowed unttex General Statutes and was up
to the discretion of the inspector. She said & w@mething they did quite often to
help people out if their building was not quiteigimed. Ms. Mellott said they had
issued 123 Conditional or partial CO’s within tlastithree years, with 46 of those
commercial and 39 within Hillsborough. She saidrfof those were still CCO’s
with two of those for the Justice Facility. Shedsthose four that were still
CCO'’s were all relative to Hillsborough’s zoningndiitions.

Mr. Roberts said then it was a discretionary poefahe Inspections Department
to issue CCO’s. Ms. Mellott responded yes, notimg power was given through
G.S. 153A-363 in the language regarding CertifeaeCompletion. She said to
remember that Certificates of Completion and Cediés of Occupancy were
interchangeable terms, noting the Administratived€oreferred to both in the
same sections. Ms. Mellott said that the CO wietive to all State and local
codes and both had to be checked before they idheegermit to ensure that all
other local jurisdictions had approved the issuasfcée permit and again at the
end of the project. However, she said, the lastesee in that section said that a
partial or temporary CO could be issued at therdigm of the inspector.

Mr. Roberts asked to what building did the CCO wgpahd where was that
building located. Ms. Mellott said it applied toet building located at 106 East
Margaret Lane which was the Justice Facility.

Ms. Lunsford asked when you issued a CO for soméomeEcupy a commercial

building, was parking considered. Ms. Mellott sadrking was considered

specifically in relation to ADA (Americans with Cabilities Act) requirements,

which related to accessibility. She said acceldsibvas determined based on
how many parking spaces were required through o#lgencies, and not the
Building Code. Ms. Mellott said if there was nalpag there would be no ADA

requirement or accessibility requirement. She dzaded on the number of
parking spaces required by typical zoning, you thpplied that number to the
Building Code or the accessibility code to deteeniow many parking spaces
had to be accessible. Ms. Mellott said before tissyed a CO or a CCO those
spaces had to be approved by her department. ghé¢hey also considered fire
lanes and other emergency items related to tratsmor for access to the
building, such as handicap ramps and drivewayschvhvere a part of the

Building Code. Ms. Lunsford said then that wasieered and approved. Ms.
Mellott responded yes.

Mr. Stevenson asked what the duration was of a C®IB. Mellott replied it did

not have a date or duration because it was basedtwfaction of the conditions.
She said typically they listed at the bottom of fimen the outstanding conditions
that had to be met before issuance of a perman@ntMs. Mellott said this CCO

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



14

did not have those conditions because they hadeweived them until the next
day after the CCO had been issued.

Mr. Stevenson asked who'’s responsibility was ineke the coordination between
the Town and the County; that is, to get condititnesn the Town. He said he
would think that if he was going to issue such erpiethat he would make sure
that all the relevant agencies those conditions ldvaxome from had been
contacted. Ms. Mellott said they had a proceshiwitheir electronic permitting
system that sent out an email notice to all theneigs that gave approvals on the
front end of the project, which Hillsborough wapat of the day that the final
inspection was requested. She said on the frahpeaople entered conditions that
had to be approved at the end, and when the fialv@s requested all of those
people received an email alerting them that thgeptavas coming to an end and
any conditions not satisfied needed to be brougtdrd.

Mr. Stevenson asked what the time period was betwdesn the email went out
and the time the CCO was issued. Ms. Mellot redpdrshe could not tell him
the exact date because she did not have the elecirdormation with her, but
she could tell him that she had checked after thegived the Judge’s Order and
Mr. Roberts had asked for the CO. She said shegbad back and checked and
all finals were in place prior to the Judge’s OrdeMr. Stevenson said he
specifically was looking for the Zoning ComplianBermit which should have
been listed as a condition. Ms. Mellott said tt@tdition was holding up the CO
and that was why they had not issued it. Shetbaidlay the final inspection was
done, if all the conditions had been satisfied thetomatically generated the CO
that day. Ms. Mellott said this particular one wasdd up because the Zoning
Compliance Permit from Hillsborough had not beepraped; therefore they had
not issued the CO the day of the final inspecti®@me said they would not issue a
final CO if any building code issues were outstagdiStaff Note: The Zoning
Compliance Permit had been issued. The Town cooldsign off on a CO
because all zoning requirements had not been met.)

Mr. Whitmore said but they could and did issue CE€®@ithout all the conditions
being satisfied. Ms. Mellott said they could, ngtithey assessed each situation
based on its merits.

Mr. Sain asked what their calculation was for pagkfor such a building as the
Justice Facility. Ms. Mellott said the Building @ did not address parking
except for handicap accessibility, noting the nurebeere generated through
zoning and they took that number and applied thédBig Code prescriptive
formula to determine how many of those had to les&ible, where they had to
be located, access aisles, and things of thatenatur

Mr. Hartkopf asked were there other Conditional @®&rce where parking was
the reason. Ms. Mellott replied there were culyefaur, with two for the Justice

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



15

Facility facility, one was for the Orange Countyo8pplex with the issue being
the sidewalk, and one was for the Farm Bureau lgaamo with stormwater.

Mr. Hartkopf said the final CO was not issued beseaparking remained a

condition attached to issuance of that final CCe ddid for the case before them
now they were hearing that because a CCO existadttie parking requirements
were somehow unenforceable. He said from a prqoexspective he was trying

to understand that. Ms. Mellott stated she coully say that her job stopped at
determining whether the building was safe, and stenhad the judgment call of
whether or not she issued a CCO and they had dktid#o that in this case.

Mr. Hornik said it was the County that issued thalf CO for any buildings in
Hillsborough, that the Town did not actually isshe CO. Ms. Mellott said that
was correct. Mr. Hartkopf said the Town was thgnatory to the County’'s CO.
Ms. Mellott said that was correct.

Mr. Hornik said essentially Ms. Mellott’'s office germed building inspections
for the Town of Hillsborough through a long ternrasmmgement. Ms. Mellott
replied that was correct. Mr. Hornik said the Towould hire its own Building
Inspector and perform its own building inspectiamsl issue its own CO’s. Ms.
Mellott said that was correct. Mr. Hornik said thghe essentially acted as the
Town’s Building Inspector when she was issuing C@% the Town of
Hillsborough. Mr. Hornik said that was why she Wwbwant to have or seek to
have a Zoning Compliance Permit from the Town olisHorough before she
issued a CO for a project in the Town. Ms. Mellegplied that was correct. Mr.
Hornik said she would not need that when she washaihe County because that
had to come from the County’s zoning people. Mslldit said that was correct.

Mr. Hornik said he understood Ms. Mellott to sagttMr. Roberts had asked her
to issue the CCO. Ms. Mellott responded Mr. Rabbed come to her office on
June 16, 2010 but she was not in that day. Mrnlaaid then on June 16, 2010
Mr. Roberts had come to her office when she wastmate and asked for the
issuance of a CCO. Ms. Mellott said Mr. Robertd hame to the office but she
was not sure he had asked that the CCO be issdedHornik said that was the

date that the CCO was issued. Ms. Mellott said Wes correct and she would
assume he had asked for it but she had not pelgdeard him say that. She said
she had been contacted through email about retedbn CCO based on the
Judge’s Order and she had responded yes and erapjealval.

Mr. Hornik said Ms. Mellott had cited G.S. 153A-368hich was the authority
that counties had to do building inspections in doeinty jurisdictions. Ms.
Mellott said that was correct, and there was aesponding one for cities. Mr.
Hornik said then G.S. 153A-363 really had nothingdb with what she did in
Hillsborough, because she would be operating utlikercompanion statute for
cities when acting as the Building Inspector folldthorough and issuing permits

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



16

for the Town. Ms. Mellott replied he was the legapert and she would have to
take his word on that.

Mr. Hornik asked was she aware that the Hillsbohordigning Ordinance, Section
19.6, provided that no building or structure colédoccupied and no CO could be
issued until after the Zoning Compliance Permit baeén issued. Ms. Mellott
replied no. Mr. Hornik said she was only concerndgth parking as far as
building codes were concerned in two regards, &t tie zoning people would tell
her how many parking spaces were required for #& and then based on that
number she would calculate to make sure there waé Aompliance. Ms.
Mellott said they did not verify the number of piaud spaces after the parking lot
was built. She said they only took the number thay were told was required
and then applied the accessibility formula to tteatdetermine the number of
accessible spaces, and they then verified thahtmaber of spaces were built and
built to code. Mr. Hornik said then they reallylpoared about making sure there
was ADA compliance so far as parking was conceraed not zoning
compliance. Ms. Mellott said that was correct. . Mornik said then she had no
idea whether there was compliance as far as parkifgy Mellott said she had no
idea because she did not enforce zoning.

Mr. Hornik said Ms. Mellott had also talked aboberte being 39 conditional
CO'’s in Hillsborough. Ms. Mellott replied yes, thd9 CCO’s had been issued
over the last 3 years. Mr. Hornik asked how mainhose 39 CCO'’s were issued
without the Town’s or the Planning Director’s orridioag Officer’s authorization.
Ms. Mellott replied none of those. Mr. Hornik sawth the exception of this one.
Ms. Mellott said that was correct.

Mr. Sain said it seemed that everything was corbaxgk to non-compliance.

Mr. Roberts said he would like to make a two-minfiteal statement at the
appropriate time.

Mr. Hornik asked if Planning Director Margaret Hadtad anything to add to the
public record. Ms. Hauth replied she was presaht  address questions.

Mr. Roberts stated he felt and had sensed some dmge the Board and he

understood that. He said the Town was made a peobyy a County employee
that Orange County would take certain actions,tamdyears later Orange County
did not follow through with that action. Mr. Rolbersaid they had an affidavit

from the County Manager indicating that that empkyid not have the authority
to make that promise; she did not have the powesnforce the terms of that
promise and make that promise happen. He saidtshdater time presented that
to the County Commissioners, and he saw nowheteerminutes where it said

that was a requirement for getting the facilitylbuMr. Roberts said he could not
say that the County Commissioners ever knew thathstd made that promise to
this Board.

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



17

Mr. Roberts said as the County's attorney he hatbo®& at that and say that
Orange County, the Town of Hillsborough, or thet&taf North Carolina as
government entities were not legally bound by unawited acts of their

employees. He said as the County’s attorney hetbaapply that law to his

analysis of this situation. Mr. Roberts said theras ample case law that
prohibited cities, counties, and states from bdingnd by unauthorized acts of
any employee with the sole exception of a countyagar or town manager or
someone in State government with apparent authotdy make such

representations. He said he understood why thevxdBwas upset and why the
Town Board was upset; promises were made and npt, kmit it was an

unauthorized promise.

Mr. Roberts said there were two reasons why theyulshreverse the Zoning

Officer's action. He said first, it was the wropgrty. Mr. Roberts said if the
Zoning Officer wanted to cite someone it shouldh®ejudge or the courts, in that
Orange County did not have the legal authorityher power to countermand the
Judge’s order to occupy the building. Mr. Robesééd that as well, Orange
County did not have the inclination to counterm#émat order. He said that there
was case law cited in the brief that demonstrétatl ¢counties were immune from
any sort of civil liability from following a courtorder or taking actions in

compliance with a court order. Mr. Roberts saiat thvas what they had done in
issuing the Conditional Certificate of Occupancyl anwas rightly issued. He

said that CCO was the second reason why the Zddifiger’'s action should be

reserved. Mr. Roberts said the CCO was in platevas not what they wanted;
they wanted the permanent and final CO.

Mr. Roberts said if a court told them that they haccomply with that zoning
requirement for parking, the CCO would change tangly with zoning
responsibilities for parking. He said they werdling to add parking in Town and
would find a way to do that. Mr. Roberts said virers of land were citable in
this situation then citations would go out in evéswn and every county across
the State pretty much every time a CCO was issitzElsaid this CCO was legal
and valid, and the only legally justifiable actithre BOA could take tonight would
be to reverse the Zoning Officer’s action.

Mr. Roberts asked that the Board accept into tleercethe memorandum and
exhibits marked 1, 2 and 3. He said exhibits 1 Zmdere in the record, which
were the Conditional Certificate of Occupancy amel Administrative Order, and
exhibit 3 was only for information and review.

Mr. Whitmore observed that they had heard JudgeiBarctalk about Pam Jones
being a County official and that he had trusted Mses as the designated person
for the past 14 years. And yet, he said, JudgekiiBerchad also said they had
wanted to avoid technical delays. Mr. Whitmoredstiiat just did not line up;
Judge Buckner trusted her and the BOA had trusted Hle said now they were
hearing that she was not authorized. He asked thew would know that Mr.

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



18

Roberts or anyone else was authorized. Mr. Rokartshe understood and it was
wise to make that observation. He said from allpgespective there was no case
law that said the County's attorney was an autlkdripperson to make
representations like he had made. Generally, ige @a attorney with the client’s
permission was authorized to make certain statesmerdlr. Roberts said the
County Manager was present and could contradictihira believed anything had
been said that was not authorized by the CountydBoaby the County Manager.
Mr. Whitmore said you can understand the frustratitnen they heard the Judge
and the County talk about a trusted employee asffanal, and that was taken at
face value. Mr. Roberts said that was why he wtded the anger that he had
seen.

Mr. Hartkopf said the Board, he believed, was majrg but rather frustrated. He
said the Board was not promised, as a promise waprasentation of something
that would come. Rather, he said, they were adstirat the process for the
shuttle was in place, and it was represented a®m@e’deal.” Mr. Roberts said he
believed he had read something similar to that.. Wartkopf said having said

that, the BOA had in the past taken promises ametlthem into conditions of

approval, and if they could not do that then thmaifigations for the next people to

come before this Board were great. He said herstw Mr. Roberts’ assertion
that a County could not be bound by the promisggseo$ons not in a position to
fulfill those promises. Mr. Hartkopt said but agaihis was not a promise but a
representation of something that had already coAwd, he said, it became part
and parcel of this contract between the Town amrdGbunty about the Justice
Facility.

Mr. Hartkopf said in paragraph 18 it used the plarastra vires” and asked what
that meant. Mr. Roberts said it was Latin and avégal term that meant “beyond
powers” and was used to indicate that an employselwordinate did not have the
authority to take certain actions.

Ms. Lunsford asked why Ms. Jones had come and mebdefore the Board if
she did not have the authority.

Mr. Hartkopt said that Ms. Jones had presentechéoBoard that she had the
authority and presented to the Board that it wddome deal” that a shuttle bus
had been secured as well as a process under wihighoyees would be

transported. Mr. Hornik said in looking at the oiies of that meeting, Ms. Jones’
title was noted as Director of Purchasing and Adisiriation, or something similar
to that. He said in any case, she was the perborhad appeared.

Mr. Stevenson asked why any organization would semmheone to secure a
permit that did not have legal authority to make #greement in the first place.
He said that was ‘insane” to him. Mr. Roberts sthé Board of County

Commissioners was not aware of what had gone ¢imisrroom. He said he had
talked with Geoff Gledhill, former orange Countytétiney, about this issue and

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



19

he had not been consulted about anyone comingééier Board. Mr. Roberts
said he did not know that anyone else knew whatheasg said at the time, so he
could not say why anything was said or that anyglse knew what Ms. Jones was
saying. He said as far as he knew that was thetbimlg she had said that was not
authorized. Mr. Roberts said he believed the gfanthe shuttle bus had been
awarded but the State had then withdrawn it, soGbenty no longer had the
ability to fund a shuttle bus.

Mr. Hornik said they would hate to have to have wrgm of the County
Commissioners present to testify every time ther@pwmade an application. He
said based on this experience, it seemed they wwaud to have that authority in
order to believe what they were told. Mr. Hornédshe understood that was not
the way government worked, and he hoped they waillccome out of this
somehow better off in the end. But, he said, righw the Town was left with not
even knowing if the County Manager had the autiiddtspeak for the County if
he were to testify in front of the Board. Mr. Hiksaid they would have to have
a quorum of the County Board in front of them sgyitmat they agreed to
whatever was being proposed, and that just couldh@the way things worked.

Mr. Whitmore said that could easily be satisfiedha future by having the people
with the authority to produce written authority siially a Power of Attorney, that
delegated authority to a person for a particulaues He said then whoever
appeared would have that delegation of authorttgde Mr. Whitmore said he did

not believe anyone wanted to deal with a bunclitightion, noting the whole idea

was that they have a safe method for the courtottdact its business while

allowing the rest of the downtown community to ftion. He said that was what
the Board was bound to do with the zoning laws.

Mr. Roberts said as far as litigation, he could thlem that the County
Commissioners would authorize him to dismiss eu®tyof it in a week if they

could reach some settlement position where the §alid something that would
satisfy this Board and the Town, and have peopl¢hatmeetings who were
authorized to tell the Town what the County woudd d

Mr. Hartkopf said in the attachments, at the bottoihrpage 204, part 2, with
regards to sovereign immunity, he had read the leasécluded in the packet but
he had not heard Mr. Roberts talk about that paeidopic tonight. Mr. Roberts
said this and one other section were included ¢sgwe the record. He said he
was presenting that information but would not mdkgher argument on it,
reiterating it was included to preserve the rearéppeal.

Mr. Whitmore asked in that same attachment, it dske question did the County
have superior jurisdiction over the Town in makidgterminations of whether
something was “occupiable” or not. Mr. Robertspmxled that the Town had
jurisdiction and control in the Town, but his omniand Mr. Hornik’s opinion

differed but his opinion was that there was a paldir statute that described

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



20

exactly what a town could control as far as Stateoninty property, and that was
G.S. 160A-392. He said in effect, that statutel $ae Town could regulate the
erection, construction, or use of buildings. MaobRrts said his and Mr. Hornik’s
interpretation of that language were at variané said as far as the erection,
construction, and use of a building, if the Couwbnted to put a dog kennel in a
residential section of the Town in a County-ownedlding, the Town could
absolutely veto that because the Town controlleduse of that building. Mr.
Roberts said there was case law that a town ouatga@ould not control a town
or a county in anything other than the erectiomstaction, and use of buildings.
He said his viewpoint was shaped by the definitiafisthe words erection,
construction, use, and buildings, and Mr. Hornill adiffering opinion.

Mr. Hornik said the Town’s opinion was that ther@uhd never have been a
building there if the County had not made represtéris about how they would
satisfy the parking requirements. He said in régdo the sovereign immunity
question, there was law that said that unlessa pmvernment either by statute or
by contract was deemed to be subject to waiveokgreign immunity then there
was no immunity. Mr. Hornik said that G.S. 160A23faid that all the provisions
of that part, which was part 3 of Chapter 160A Anticle 19 of Chapter 160A,
were hereby made applicable to the erection, coctstn, and use of buildings by
the State and its political subdivisions. He da8i&. 160A-389 was part of that
same part and said that “a building or structureergected, constructed,
reconstructed, altered, repaired, converted, orntaigied, or any building,
structure or land is used in violation of this partof any ordinance or other
regulation made under authority conferred ther¢hg, city, in addition to other
remedies, may institute any appropriate action mceedings to prevent the
unlawful erection, construction, reconstructiontewdtion, repair, conversion,
maintenance or use, to restrain, correct or abhée Miolation, to prevent
occupancy of the building, structure or land, optevent any illegal act, conduct,
business or use in or about the premises.”

Mr. Hornik said it was his opinion that the Stategislature had already said that
counties must comply with Article 19, Part 3 of @tex 160A and any ordinances
that the Town adopted under that authority. Hed #aat was exactly where they
were, in that it was the staff's position that thdrad been a violation of the
Zoning Ordinance and non-compliance with the apgdowsite plan which
approved the construction of the building under Tlwsvn’s ordinance adopted
pursuant to that section of State law. Mr. Horsiikted that G.S. 160A-392 said
that the Town had some say over the constructighatfbuilding, and G.S. 160A-
389 said that the Town had enforcement remedi¢sibige available. He said by
law the County was subject to that.

Mr. Roberts said he had not made that argument usecaf the legal
technicalities, but he would make that argumera jadge if necessary. He said it
was his position that G.S. 160A-392 did not applyte County for a particular
reason and the sovereign immunity was still in @lac

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



21

Mr. Hartkopf said it was his understanding thatvés Ms. Hauth’s previous
testimony that she had received reports from Tovaff @and the local police
department regarding the movement of traffic andep&ians in the vicinity of the
Justice Facility. Ms. Hauth said as part of anaang study the Town was
conducting they had staff conducting traffic couamtsl observing traffic situations
in the downtown generally. Mr. Hartkopf asked wttka last such reports had
been received on those activities. Ms. Hauth sstié had some casual
observations made today, but the actual counts lastelone the second week of
July. Mr. Hartkopf said that would be after Judgieckner moved court back to
Hillsborough. Ms. Hauth replied yes. Mr. Hartkopisked were those
observations and counts conducted on actual daydr#ific court was in session.
Ms. Hauth replied yes. Mr. Hartkopf asked what dyinion was on what those
reports showed in regards to the safety and efficddoot and mobile traffic in
the area of the Justice Facility. Ms. Hauth saithout having the reports in front
of her she could not quote numbers of illegal paglkand the like, but in general a
number of situations were noted and photographesigoiificant illegal parking
within the lot next to the Justice Facility and the street. She said they had
coordinated with the Police Department and they ¢@wlucted enforcement of
the illegal parking on the street, noting that tléy not have enforcement powers
within the County’s parking lot. Ms. Hauth saidnias a matter of concern for the
Fire Marshal which caused him to conduct his owrdgtof the site and offer
some recommendations and requirements of how adaa signs needed to be
installed in the parking lot to provide safe firadaemergency access to the
building.

Mr. Hartkopf asked was she offered any reportspinions of the queuing at the
intersection of Churton Street and Margaret Lan¢heneast side and on the west
side as well. Ms. Hauth said not that she recafsetifically. She said there had
been casual reports of people pulling up and stapi front of the courthouse to
drop people off, which created a slowdown for pedpying to turn right onto
East Margaret Lane from Churton Street which impé&dChurton Street. Ms.
Hauth said she had not heard anything since therooms were opened about
people trying to leave East Margaret Lane and acCésirton Street and queuing
at the light from that direction. She said she lmsdrd in the past that it
sometimes took three cycles to get through the.ligftr. Hartkopf said he did not
want to go in depth about that since there wastoaeton taking place on East
Margaret Lane. Ms. Hauth said all of those instanevere prior to the
construction.

Mr. Hartkopf determined that there were no otheeakers or questions for
witnesses at this time.

MOTION: Ms. Lunsford moved to close the Public Hearing on Case #BA-0B320Mr.
Sainseconded.
VOTE: Unanimous.

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



22

Discussion:
Mr. Stevenson stated for clarity a Notice of Viatathad been issued for failure
to meet the conditions of approval, and he wantedé specific about those
conditions.

Mr. Hartkopf said those conditions could be foundthe second paragraph on
page 2 of the staff report. He said there wasraition that there be a submittal
of the parking plan referred to as process docusnienthe relevant condition of
approval, and it was stated the condition was umigkerinfluence of the Zoning
Compliance Permit. Mr. Hartkopt said they had uésed the conversation with
Pam Jones that County employees would utilize theh@m Tech lot or some
other remote lot, and the Board could exercisdigsretion in that event. He said,
with regard to parking, by putting in a conditidhsaid if the County actually
committed to doing that and, as had been repohtedunds and the buses were
already there, they would make that a conditioapggroval and allow the building
of the Justice Facility to carry on.

Mr. Hornik said in regards to the Notice of Viotatiitself, which was Attachment
2 to the staff report, was Ms. Hauth’s May 26, 20dffer. He said that in the
second paragraph it was stated: “Please take nibitehe Town of Hillsborough
has determined that the renovated Orange Countytl@mse, located at 106 East
Margaret Lane, is currently being occupied withautvalid Certificate of
Occupancy in violation of the Conditional Site Plapproval granted for the
Orange County Justice Center in November 2006pahticular, the Courthouse
has been occupied without satisfaction of the demdiof approval for the
Courthouse Expansion project which required Ora@genty to submit to the
Town of Hillsborough process documents describiagy iDrange County would
use the remote parking spaces at Durham Tech’ssinpWaterstone to satisfy
Orange County’s off-street parking requirement tfog expanded and renovated
Justice Center. Additionally, the Justice Centas been opened and occupied
without a Certificate of Occupancy and despite fiet that it did not satisfy
Hillsborough Zoning Ordinance off-street parkingugements found in Section
6.6 of the Hillsborough Zoning Ordinance.”

Mr. Stevenson said that Notice of Violation wasrsitted prior to the CCO. Mr.
Hornik replied yes, noting the CCO was issued JU®e2010. Mr. Stevenson
asked how that CCO impacted the Notice of Violatidvir. Hornik said that was
what the Board of Adjustment had to determine.

Mr. Hartkopf said his thinking on that was thatréhevas a statement on the front
of the CCO in the box just under the County selde said at first reading, it
basically said that in this case if the County adréhat the County had fulfilled
the requirements then the County ought to be ablenbabit the County’s
building. Mr. Hartkopf said on its face it lookéille that was what is said. He
said on reading it several times and listeningh tivo attorneys this evening, it
became clear that when it said in the second seat&il applicable ordinances,

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



23

restrictions, regulations of the County, North Giamy and statutes of North

Carolina...” it was in those statutes where the T@wrdinances were authorized.
Mr. Hartkopf said the Town’s ordinances were petgditand enforced by statute,
so it carried the force of law.

Mr. Hartkopf said the next sentence said “if anyhef conditions or restrictions so
specified (that is, in the statutes) or any pagtebf shall be held void or invalid,
or if any conditions or restrictions are not coragliwith (which was a long way of
saying the Town’s ordinances) this Certificate kbalvoid and of no effect.” Mr.
Hartkopf said with that having been said and witrmamment to anything else, it
would seem to be that the CCO was void and of fecef

Mr. Hornik pointed out to the Board Section 19.Gleé Zoning Ordinance, which

said that, among other things, that: “No buildisgucture, or zoning lot for which

a Zoning Compliance Permit has been issued shalisbd or occupied until the

Building Inspector has, after final inspection,uisd a Certificate of Occupancy.
However, the issuance of a Certificate of Occupasi@ll in no case be construed
as waiving any provision of the Ordinance.”

Mr. Hartkopf said if they took that section, anéyHooked at the document they
were provided tonight, under “Conclusions,” onetlod arguments made in that
paragraph was that there was a CCO in place. Idefream his perspective that
argument failed. Mr. Hartkopf said the next seogenhat said that Orange
County’s actions were consistent with a faciallyidvzacourt order thus giving
Orange County qualified immunity for its actionde said he believed that Judge
Buckner had made it very clear when asked questamait it that the three
branches of government were separate, and thaudi®ary had its rules as did
the other two branches. Mr. Hartkopf said he beliethat if Judge Buckner had
been asked to do something he thought was illeghlirconsistent with his oath
he would not have done it, and that Judge Buckeberd he was acting within
his oath and within his charge. And, he said, du@uyckner had a court
responsibility to carry on court, and he had mddelgar to the Board that the
County had a responsibility to provide adequatdif@s, including chairs, tables,
doors and walls. Mr. Hartkopf said those two tlsiglgd not cross.

Mr. Stevenson said it was his belief that any jusiggder did not relieve the
County of the responsibility of meeting the coraht of the Town’s Zoning
Ordinance. He said the conditions were still cwégré and still needed to be
complied with.

Mr. Hartkopf said in fact, Judge Buckner said thatthe bottom of the first page
of Appellant's Exhibit 2, where it said “I do nokleve the courts have any
current jurisdiction or responsibility in this dgaement between these two
legislative bodies.” He said the Judge was sagmdnad his responsibilities and
the issue was between the County and the Townhanuklieved the Judge had

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



24

pursued that realizing that he was likely goingteate a situation but that he had
a duty.

Ms. Lunsford said for clarification, did the CCO ameyou could not occupy that
building without making sure it met all conditionst did it mean you could

occupy but you still had the conditions and you tathake sure those conditions
were satisfied. Ms. Mellott stated that the Candél CO meant that the CO
could not be issued until the conditions were fiatis She said the conditions
were typically stated at the bottom of the CCO, beit office had not received
those conditions before they had issued the CC@usecTom King had indicated
he had to check with the Town Attorney. Ms. Mdlleaid they received the
conditions the next day via email from Tom King.

Mr. Hornik said what had happened was the Townlesh told that the CO was
going to be issued that day, and Mr. King had dalien to ask what to do about
that. Ms. Mellott said that was because her offied requested the conditions,
because Mr. King had checked “no” on the form thathad not approved the
Zoning. She said her office was diligent aboutiggtall necessary approvals
before issuing a final CO. Ms. Mellott said thegdhcontacted Mr. King and
asked what else was needed, and his response wesultk get back with them.
She said then, he had sent the email the nextrithat@ached the conditions. Ms.
Mellott said her staff had issued the CCO priomgédting the details from Mr.
King, so they had added that clause at the bottoimecCCO.

Ms. Lunsford said then you could occupy a buildwigh a CCO. Ms. Mellott
stated that was correct, with conditions. Ms. lfars said and there were no
timelines to meet those conditions. Ms. Melloitlsgu could include a timeline,
but they had not done so.

Mr. Hornik said he believed the idea was that holbpefand eventually the

conditions would be satisfied and an unconditioB& could be issued. Ms.
Mellott said that was correct and that was the gtarshe had given, in that of the
123 issued in the last three years there were fonily outstanding with three of
those for the County.

Mr. Hartkopf said he could see the need for a C@®@mgthe nature of the facility,
but the question he had was were all the blockekdte Ms. Mellott replied
“absolutely.” She said they were all checked, eme¢ was checked “No” which
was the Town of Hillsborough Zoning. Mr. Hartkopéid that begged the
question as to what had prompted her office tolggad and issue the CCO when
they knew that Hillsborough’s Zoning had not beamned off on? Ms. Mellott
said at the time the Administrative Order was igsbg the Judge they did not
have a copy of the Order and did not know anytlabgut it. She said when the
Administrative Order was brought to their attentionJune they issued the CCO.
Ms. Mellott added that to her a Judge’s order wasy\serious so she had
approved the issuance of the CCO.

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



25

Mr. Hartkopf said for clarification, with regards the work being done on the old
part of the Justice Facility, was there at somatgaitime a conversation that said
that this issue only applied to the Mural Courtroonto the whole building. Mr.
Hornik said the Administrative Order said in thetlparagraph, “Under my duty
as Chief District Judge, for all of our residentarsiting judges, to meet and the
above Constitutional, statutory, Code of judiciabnduct and Inherent
responsibilities and mandates, | have decideddbatt will be held in the Mural
Courtroom beginning Monday, May 17, 2010.”

Mr. Hartkopf asked then was the CCO just for therdfi€ourtroom or did it deal
with the Gordon Battle Courtroom and the officesttom same floor as the Gordon
Battle Courtroom. Mr. Hornik said the Order sa8J(B8 total square feet, and he
did not know if that was the entire building. Mdellot said that was the whole
original building, and it was their intent that t6€0 be for the entire renovation.
She said the addition was one permit and the reimovavas a separate permit
which was why there were two CCO'’s still outstamdior the entire complex.

Mr. Stevenson said then there were two CCO'’s, onghfe old part and one for
the new, and the one they were concerned with Wasethe one for the old part.
Ms. Hauth stated that the one for the new partissaged many months ago so that
they could move out of the old part and into thevneart and then begin
renovating the old part.

Ms. Mellott said the one in front of them was ftwetrenovation and not the
addition. She said the additional CCO had tiethéocovered area out front at the
passenger drop-off zone.

Mr. Stevenson asked what the County’s recourseaiveiss point.

Mr. Hartkopf said they were bound by the Town’sinamces, and the ordinance
required X parking spaces but they did not havexcss identified. He said the
Town was currently looking at modifying its ordire@s, so using round numbers
it could be that the new regulation would requimdyohalf of X. But, Mr.
Hartkopf said, they did not yet know how that wowlan out, but there were
understandings on the line right now that said tiegyired X spaces.

Mr. Hartkopf said there was also the option thdteotparking could be erected
elsewhere or even some perhaps erected on thatsitery Or, he said, other
solutions might be identified that had not yet beensidered. Mr. Hartkopf said
the County could elect to wait and see whateverntiogified ordinance might
require, and the County would then have to petitioe Town to have this case
evaluated under the new parking requirements, hag had agreed that could
happen. He said if the requirement was half whatas now, the County would
be very close to meeting its requirement so that well be a solution.

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



26

Mr. Stevenson said he wondered if the County caploly for a new Conditional
Use Permit, because apparently the original agreewas not going to happen.

Mr. Hartkopf asked could the County do that. MrngdK said not under a
Conditional Use Permit because this was a site g@gmoval. Mr. Hartkopf said
the Board’s point was that they had approved tteedan on a particular set of
ordinances and those ordinances existed today.KMg said the County would
have to show they were complying with the ordinanegen if they filed for

whatever permit it would have to fall under now.

Mr. Stevenson said he understood that that reatly ndt affect the Board'’s
decision, or it shouldn’t. Mr. Hornik said whaethwere asked to do tonight was
to either affirm or modify or reverse the deterntio@ of the Zoning Officer. He
said there were all kinds of ways they could dd.thdr. Hornik said they could
just say it was confirmed, or they could just sawas reversed. He said they
could say it was affirmed but the penalty wouldyobe for a certain period of
time, or that they would suspend the penalty fons@eriod of time. Mr. Hornik
said the Board had the authority to do whateverzbeing Officer could have
done under the ordinance on this appeal.

Mr. Hartkopf said the Board could simply affirm ti#®ning Officer’s ruling
tonight and then at some later point in time ther@@yp could file for relief on the
appeal, which he believed would come before the BOA. Hornik replied no,
that the appeal would be to Superior Court. Mnitktepf said if the BOA were to
uphold the ruling and the County was to come imimjgliance then it would come
back to the BOA at some point in time with the Ciyusaying they had been out
of compliance for X number of days and ask for ifieegess of the assessed
penalties. Mr. Hornik said he had not thought altbat. He said there was some
mechanism under which that could be done but haalidknow exactly how.

Ms. Lunsford said she was getting hung up on tlketfzat the CCO was issued
saying it was okay to occupy the building so losdhe conditions were addressed
at some point.

Mr. Hornik said there was no timeframe, and furtherbelieved they had had the
conversation that at least in his mind satisfiext the CCO was without course.

Mr. Stevenson said it appeared that the CCO wasgiteely issued.

Mr. Sain said it was prematurely issued after tlutidé of Violation, and had it
been issued prior to that there may have never aééotice of Violation. He said
he understood that was all speculation.

Mr. Hartkopf went over the timeline, noting thatetlpermit to construct was
issued May 22, 2007. He said the CCO date of 16n2010 was the date that the
document was created, and the print date was whserMdllott actually printed it.

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



27

Ms. Lunsford asked about the date of the NoticeVaflation. Mr. Hornik
responded that was issued on May 26, 2010.

Mr. Hartkopf said while the building permit wasugsl significantly prior to the
Notice of Violation, the CCO was issued after thaibe of Violation.

Ms. Lunsford asked why the County had not addresised\otice of Violation
prior to issuing the CCO. She said someone h&dve known that it was already
in the record that there was a Notice of Violatism why would they issue a CCO
before addressing that.

Mr. Stevenson said they were obviously ignoringhiagice of Violation.

Ms. Lunsford asked would Susan Mellott have gottenopy of the Notice of
Violation, or would have been informed of it.

Mr. Hartkopf asked why that mattered.

Ms. Lunsford said because if Ms. Mellott knew abitgt Notice of Violation, she
still issued the CCO.

Mr. Sain said she had issued it because she hadibfemed of the Judge’s
Administrative Order.

Ms. Lunsford said she saw it as being very irrespgma that the Zoning had not

been addressed, yet those actions had been t&kensaid they had heard several
meetings ago that the Town merchants were extremadgt because this issue
was affecting their business. Ms. Lunsford aské@twvould happen when the

downtown shut down because people could not gisietoestaurants and shops.

Mr. Sain asked when the new parking regulationslevbe effective and enforced
by the Police. Ms. Hauth said the restriping wisoat complete and the new
signs would be erected shortly. She said probbblthe time of the September
Board meeting the Board would be able to judge béfective the changes were.
Ms. Hauth said the Police were handling extremeesasow, such as when
someone parked in the wrong direction or did somgtlconsidered odd or
dangerous. But, she said, they were not conductimgtant enforcement. Mr.
Sain said once that came into play that would taket of the on-street parking
away, noting that the merchants had been very enaedeabout court visitors and
employees taking up all the available downtown tweet parking.

Ms. Lunsford said from her observations the parkimthe downtown appeared to
be very chaotic.

Mr. Hartkopf said that was why he had questioned Mauth about what was
happening on Churton Street. He said when the B@d&approved the site plan

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



MOTION:

28

they had an expectation that the traffic now hiftMargaret Lane would not be
hitting Margaret Lane, and that was understoochat time. Mr. Hartkopf said
had they known otherwise, they would have addedralition to the approval
with regards to the signal timing at Churton anddéaet. He said there had been
a traffic study of the area done some time agotlmttwould have been based on
a different number.

Ms. Lunsford said it was her understanding thatetlr®ugh conditionally the
County could occupy the Justice Center, a civilgitgnof $100 a day was being
charged.

Mr. Hartkopf said he thought what the CCO was myio say was that because the
parking condition had not been met they really doubt use that. He said the
Judge had a different opinion, and that was andisere. Mr. Hartkopf said in
essence, because certain ordinances were not emetith CCO was null and void.

Mr. Sain said it all came down to the ordinanced there in place now and when
the County had received the approval.

Mr. Hornik reminded the Board that if they upheke tZoning Officer’s ruling
then the motion would need to state at least on& pwsupport that.

Ms. Lunsford said that Ms. Mellott had said the @gucould occupy the building
yet there were conditions outstanding.

Ms. Hauth said Ms. Mellott had talked about the hamof CCO'’s that had been
issued over the last three years, and in every tteess@own had been consulted
and the Town indicated that they were okay withupamncy or were not okay with
occupancy. She said by and large the County wiemigawith them on that
because it was a zoning matter. Ms. Hauth saidoime cases it might be
landscaping or some other issue. She said in alevesy case, the County had
signed off that occupancy was okay with certaindttoons, or they had not issued
the CCO. Ms. Hauth said this one was differerthat it was parking, and if the
Town had been asked they would have said occupaasynot okay for this type
of condition. She said what made this case diffeveas that a different outcome
came from the CCO.

Mr. Stevenson moved to uphold the determination by the Zoningideff in
regards to Case #BA-08-2010 for the following reesso
1. that the conditions of the original approval haee lmeen met; and
2. that the Justice Center building was occupied witha Conditional
Certificate of Occupancy (no CCO was in place attime the Notice of
Violation was issued).
3. Further, that the civil fine of $100 per day beprreded for six months to
allow time for the appellant to produce a solutiormeet the conditions of
the site plan approval.

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



29

Mr. Whitmore seconded.
Discussion:

Ms. Lunsford said she believed that was reasoradeit extended a hand to the
County.

Mr. Sain said to him suspending the fine for sixnths was too long. He said if
the County really wanted to resolve the issue ttmyld provide a solution in a
shorter timeframe.

Mr. Whitmore said another issue was the legality tre basis of G.S. 160A-392,
which gave the Town the right and authority to haeming ordinances apply
within the Town.

Mr. Hartkopf said that this issue had been in thklis domain for four years, and
a plan could have been brought forward by the Goanany point in time during
those four years. He said he intended to vote ‘miv’the motion because he
wanted to keep the penalties in force becauserthesy have something to drive a
resolution to the issue. Mr. Hartkopf said in dission the Board had said, and he
would be amenable, to listening to arguments fduecdon or suspension once the
building use had come into compliance.

Mr. Whitmore asked what the Board was trying tanaigo the County with the
time limit.

Mr. Stevenson said nothing happened overnight, lenavas trying to give the

County reasonable time to identify a solution. ,Bug¢ said, he was suddenly
having a change of heart based on Mr. Hartkopfsarks and wanted to amend
his motion.

Mr. Hartkopf said they needed to vote the motiorwoand then make a
subsequent motion.

Mr. Hornik said if the Board was of a mind to confithe Zoning Officer's
decision and wanted to indicate a willingness taknan the civil penalty, they
could affirm with a condition that they were wil§into revisit the issue of the
amount of the civil penalty at such time as thepprty was brought into
compliance with the parking requirements of theidgrOrdinance.

Mr. Hartkopf said the minutes would reflect tha¢ tRoard had already indicated
that, and an astute observer would realize thaBtheed was already there. He
said his point was that there would have to comtittube some procedure or some
movement in the right direction. Mr. Hartkopf sdine fact of the matter was that
if the County decided to lay them to the side amgt parry on for another five

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



VOTE:

MOTION:

VOTE:

ITEM #5:

MOTION:

VOTE:

30

years then he would not be in a very good positmmegotiate on that civil
penalty.

The vote was 0-5. The motion failed.

The Board held a brief discussion regarding thedwgy to be used in the new
motion, including what details should or should & included to make the
motion as straightforward and thorough as possiside reflecting the reasons
for their decision.

Mr. Sain moved to uphold the determination by the Zoningiceffin regards to
Case #BA-08-2010 as follows:
1. for the reasons as stated in the Notice of Viotgtio
2. that the Conditional Certificate of Occupancy wasalid due to the
required Zoning Ordinance regulations not havingnbeet; and
3. that validity was provided by General Statute 1689%- giving authority to
the Town’s Zoning Ordinance.
The Board would revisit the civil penalties where tbonditions of the Zoning
Ordinance were met.
Ms. Lunsford seconded.
Unanimous.

Mr. Roberts asked was this a situation where tdtaghecision would be filed
with the Zoning Officer after the Board’s next magt Mr. King said they would
have to formulate the order to ensure accuracy tlaem at the next meeting they
would approve the order. He indicated at times Bloard did not meet every
month, and if that was the case then it could kenbnth after.

Mr. Hartkopf asked that staff alert Mr. Robertsadvance of the Board’'s next
meeting so he would know when that would be. Mngkagreed to do that.

Mr. King suggested not hearing Item #5b but movoigectly into Closed
Session. The Board agreed by consensus.

Closed Session: Status Report from the Town Attorneregarding the Orange
County Justice Facility.

Mr. Hartkopf moved to enter into a Closed Session as authotizediorth
Carolina General Statute Section 143-318.11(ajHerpurpose of discussing the
Orange County Justice Facility pending litigatiavir. Stevensonseconded.
Unanimous.

Mr. Hornik gave the Board an update on this legatter and answered Board
guestions.

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



ITEM #6:

31

Close the Closed SessionThe Board agreed by consensus to close the Closed
Session and return to Open Session.

Committee and Staff reports.
Mr. King said he needed some feedback from the Boagarding the email the
Board had received dated August 6, 2010 regarti@d@bard survey.

Mr. Hartkopf asked was that feedback specificabpwt the BOA’s operation or
about a variety of boards. Mr. King said he waskiog at it generally for the
Board of Adjustment and what its needs were. Heé #gre were only seven
comments that he needed feedback on.

1. Need more time to review materials.

Mr. King said that 14+ days was included in theestiiie, and it would be
extremely difficult to get the materials out 14 dagrior to Board meetings
because it took time to gather materials and whee staff report, and a longer
period would require pushing application deadlioesfurther.

Mr. Sain said he believed what they were doing neas acceptable. Ms.
Lunsford said she had no complaint as well.

Mr. Hartkopf said he had served on another boardraithe rule was packets
were to be received a week in advance, but ranelytteey get them until just a
few days prior to the meeting. He said Mr. Kingusld be commended for his
efforts, and believed if they tried to do anythmgre than what was being done
now if would interrupt other business.

Mr. Stevenson asked if the packets were alwaysasgelas what had been
received for this meeting. Mr. King said this aglp@as complicated and required
a lot of materials, where other appeals were natlypeas difficult. But, he said,
there were times when the Board would get paclstarge, and even larger, than
what had been provided tonight.

2. Incomplete applications were coming before the Boar

Mr. King said that had been discussed at the retcaiming session, and asked in
what ways they were incomplete. He asked weresthpecific items missing or
that the site plan did not show compliance with sassue, or something else.

Mr. Sain said some things depended on what diredtie Board was trying to
point an applicant to in order to get what they tgdn Mr. King said an applicant
would come before the Board, there was somethiayg tld not have, the Board
would give them direction, and they came back anlddéd not have what they
needed to give the Board. He said he remembered noeeting where an

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



32

applicant had come back three times, and in the¢ cdaff had wrangled with
them for a month or more before the Board everthaapplication.

3. More completed applications could make thingstke Iietter.

Mr. King said that was somewhat along the same &sitthe previous comment
and he would continue to work on that.

4. Prefer to receive ordinance reference excerjkseach item.

Mr. King said in his staff reports he had stoppeavpling ordinance citations and

sometimes not even including the title of the oadice section. One Board

member indicated he was not yet familiar with b# brdinances and it would be
helpful to get just the key excerpts from the pemit sections, possible even just
one sentence. Mr. King said he had an idea of twoaddress that and would

work on it.

5. Please provide guidance on best practices osedyanize all the information
the Board would receive and would need to carrpwhem to meetings and
to retain reasonable records of situations — bs)dabs, notes.

Mr. King said for the newer members he had notlhiaders for their ordinances,
but asked if that comment referred to having biadar the table in which the
Board could insert pertinent information. The Bbadiscussed whether
documents provided to them for matters before tbar® should be kept in their
possession or recycled, and the fact that somehefdocuments contained
sensitive information. Mr. King stated those miallercould be returned to him
for recycling. He said that he retained file capod everything so the Board did
not need to retain anything unless they wantedatee fparticular materials on
hand. Mr. King said he had entertained the pd#siloif sending the staff reports
to the Board electronically, but did not know ifyaof the Board members would
prefer that or to get them by mail. He said if th@ff reports were sent
electronically, then the Board would be able tdeenit before the meeting and he
would provide paper copies at their places the tnaflthe meeting. The Board
agreed by consensus to receive the staff reponsaly

Ms. Hauth commented that once the Board had voteda onatter and then
approved the minutes at the next month’s meetinthad point there was no need
to retain any of the materials. She said the Tavas the official record keeper
and the Board members would never be asked to peodloy materials related to
their work on the Board. Ms. Hauth said if theylcbnot recycle the materials
from home they should feel free to return them to IKing for recycling.

Mr. King commented that if the Board members wouddurn their mailing
envelopes, they would be reused multiple times.

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



33

6. Staff highlight shortcomings in submitted madki

Mr. King asked for something specific, noting thatscored 3 out of 5 in this area
on the survey, so that told him there was a loto@im for improvement. The
response was that the Board wanted him to idetitfymost problematic issues in
his staff report.

7. Staff identifies potential difficulties, challges or discussion points for
agenda items.

Mr. King noted that he had scored 4 out of 5 irs threa on the survey. The
Board’s consensus was that the packets were camplet staff provided the
information needed, and that Mr. King was doing adj job and should be
commended for that. Mr. King said he was attengptmm make the staff reports
shorter, but would redouble his efforts to give Beard just what they needed to
know.

Mr. King said that appeals were somewhat diffeserd he had been advised not
to provide any recommendations on those. He saidaad even been advised not
to offer scenarios based on one outcome or the.othe

ITEM #7:  Adjourn.

MOTION: Ms, Lunsford moved to adjourn the meeting at 10:23 p.rulr. Whitmore
seconded.
VOTE: Unanimous.

Approved:

Tom King, AICP, CZO
Senior Planner
Secretary to the Board

Board of Adjustment
August 11, 2010



